          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 December 13, 2006

                            Start:  10:30 a.m.

         11                 Recess: 12:23 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         HIRAM MONSERRATE

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Michael Nelson

         18                                 Tony Avella

                                            Lewis Fidler

         19                                 Letitia James

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Mark Hurwitz

          4  Deputy Commissioner

             NYC Department of Homeless Services

          5

             Dan Lohaus

          6

             Malik Hutchinson

          7  CASAC

             Representing Samaritan Village Veterans Program

          8

             Thomas Mullifield

          9  New Era Veterans, Inc.

         10  Dr. Raphael K. Works

             Veterans Association of America, Inc.

         11

             Joe Bello

         12

             Pat Toro, Pres.

         13  Vietnam Veterans of America

         14  Ricky Singh

             Black Veterans for Social Justice, Inc.

         15

             Ralph Di Toro

         16  Disabled Veterans Vending

         17  Dan Rossi

             Veterans

         18

             Robert Rivera

         19  Samaritan Village Vets Program

         20  Immanuel D. Eusey

         21  Daniel Rodriguez

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I'm Council

          3  Member Hiram Monserrate, Chair of the Veterans

          4  Committee.  We're going to call this meeting to

          5  order.

          6                 Currently there are well over 300,000

          7  military veterans living within New York City.

          8  There are also thousands of City residents currently

          9  serving in Iraq and Afghanistan and other

         10  assignments throughout the world.  Consequently, the

         11  Veterans Committee would like to explore the housing

         12  services available to returning veterans who may be

         13  at risk for becoming homeless.

         14                 As of May 2006, the United States

         15  Veterans Administration estimates that there are as

         16  many as 12,000 homeless veterans living in New York

         17  City.  Veterans returning home from active duty

         18  often face numerous problems during the transition

         19  from military to civilian life.  Obviously, this

         20  puts them at risks for homelessness.

         21                 For example, many veterans live with

         22  the lingering effects of post-traumatic stress

         23  disorder and with other issues and lack of financial

         24  support.  New York City has one of the most

         25  expensive housing markets in the country which
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          2  compounds the housing problems for returning vets.

          3  The Veterans Administration offers a variety of

          4  programs designed to assist homeless military

          5  veterans.  Within New York City, the Salvation Army

          6  of Greater New York is under contract with the New

          7  York City Department of Homeless Services to provide

          8  shelter for homeless veterans.

          9                 This Committee has invited the

         10  Department of Homeless Services and the Salvation

         11  Army to discuss with us today the status of the

         12  Board and Avenue Veterans Residence, a shelter

         13  specifically designed for homeless veterans and or

         14  any other programs or initiatives.

         15                 The Committee also expects to hear

         16  this morning from various veteran advocate support

         17  groups and such.

         18                 So, please anyone who wants to

         19  testify make sure you see the Sergeant at Arms, fill

         20  out a card and we are going to be hearing from the

         21  Department of Homeless Services first.  Let me also

         22  say that I understand that the Commissioner wanted

         23  to be here today.  He could not.  He committed to

         24  coming back to a subsequent hearing.  I don't know

         25  if that will be necessary but in for him today  is
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          2  Mark Hurwitz who is a Deputy Commissioner at the New

          3  York City Department  of Homeless Services and Sarah

          4  Freeman.

          5                 So, please folks identify yourself,

          6  your title, the agency you represent and please

          7  present your testimony.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Thank

          9  you.  Good morning Chairman Monserrate and Members

         10  of the Council.  I'm Mark --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Before you

         12  go forward, let me actually identify the Members of

         13  the Committee that are here today.  Council Member

         14  Tony Avella from Queens and Council Member Nelson

         15  from Brooklyn and the General Counsel and the staff

         16  assigned to this Committee on my right.  Please go

         17  ahead.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Thank

         19  you.  I'm Mark Hurwitz, Deputy Commissioner for

         20  Adult Services at the New York City Department of

         21  Homeless Services and I would like to introduce

         22  Sarah Freeman who is the Assistant Commissioner for

         23  Shelter Operations.

         24                 Thank you for giving us this

         25  opportunity to speak to you today about a very
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          2  important issue, New York City Military Veterans who

          3  are facing homelessness.  I am pleased that so many

          4  veterans are here in the audience today who are

          5  participating in programs some of which are funded

          6  by our department.  Others like the Samaritan

          7  Village Veterans program funded by other agencies

          8  and it's just terrific to see the turnout today.

          9                 There are three main points I'd like

         10  to focus on today.  The first point, which has been

         11  articulated by Mayor Bloomberg and the City's action

         12  plan, Uniting for Solutions Beyond Shelter, is that

         13  we can overcome homelessness.  Mayor Bloomberg and

         14  Commissioner Robert Hess, who is himself a veteran,

         15  are committed to strengthening the services

         16  available to veterans in transitional housing and

         17  creating more opportunities for homeless veterans to

         18  move into permanent housing as quickly as possible.

         19  To that end, DHS will remain dedicated to

         20  refashioning our current system and creating

         21  innovative strategies to better address the needs of

         22  veterans.

         23                 My second point is that achieving

         24  this goal of ending homelessness for military

         25  veterans is something that will require coordination
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          2  among a vast array of public and private partners.

          3  Accordingly to publicly available statistic provided

          4  by the federal Department of Veterans' Affairs,

          5  nearly one- third of adult homeless men and one

          6  fourth of all homeless adults have served in the

          7  armed forces.  Of these about half of all homeless

          8  veterans suffer from mental illness and more than

          9  two thirds from alcohol or drug use problems.

         10  Nearly 40% have both psychiatric and substance abuse

         11  disorders.

         12                 While these figures appear daunting,

         13  under Commissioner Hess' leadership our agency

         14  envisions an unique opportunity to work with other

         15  veteran services organizations, many of whom are

         16  here today, and to serve those individuals who have

         17  risked their lives to serve us and our country.

         18  This means doing everything we can to prevent

         19  homelessness and to connect those veterans whose

         20  homelessness can't be avoided to other service

         21  systems that can aid in their recovery so that they

         22  can quickly move to permanent and stable housing.

         23                 My third point is that as we move

         24  toward systemic reform we must not loose sight of

         25  the individuals who are the subject of your hearing
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          2  today.

          3                 This past Veterans' Day Commissioner

          4  Hess, with key staff from DHS including Assistant

          5  Commissioner Freeman personally assisted three

          6  veterans in moving into permanent and supportive

          7  housing.  These shelter clients had histories of

          8  homelessness dating back 18 years on average.

          9  Realizing that we can and must do better, DHS worked

         10  quickly with our partners to place these men into

         11  private apartments.

         12                 One of these individuals was Mr. Jay,

         13  a 50 year old African American veteran who had been

         14  residing intermittently in shelter since 1987.

         15  Through the diligent efforts of our staff, Mr. Jay

         16  moved into a brand new apartment where he was able

         17  to use a housing subsidy to pay the rent.  Mr. Jay

         18  now has a home of his own after spending more than

         19  19 years in and out of homelessness.

         20                 Although the agency achieved

         21  remarkable outcomes in these individual instances,

         22  DHS cannot stand on these success alone.  Our agency

         23  remains committed to working aggressively to make

         24  alternatives to shelter available for all of the

         25  veterans in the shelter system.
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          2                 With that context I would like to

          3  talk about what we know about homelessness among

          4  military veterans in New York City. Last night more

          5  than 34,000 individuals slept in the New York City

          6  Shelter system.  Of this number, more than 7,300

          7  individuals slept in a single shelter system.  A

          8  total of 717 individuals have self reported as

          9  military veterans though DHS believes that there may

         10  be more veterans in the shelter system than the

         11  number of those who self report.  Mirroring national

         12  trends, approximately 98% of homeless veterans in

         13  our shelter system are male.

         14                 In addition to the complex set of

         15  factors which underlie all homelessness including,

         16  as you mentioned, shortage of affordable housing,

         17  livable income and access to health care.  A large

         18  number of displaced and at risk veterans live, as

         19  you mentioned earlier, with the lingering effects of

         20  post traumatic stress disorder.  Services among

         21  homeless veterans within the shelter system present

         22  unique challenges.  DHS funds largely through

         23  contracts with non- profit organizations programs

         24  for homeless single adults and families including

         25  outreach and drop- in services, transitional housing
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          2  and support services and permanent housing.

          3                 My testimony today focuses largely on

          4  our services for homeless single adults.  In each of

          5  New York City's five boroughs, DHS provides street

          6  outreach services.  In collaboration with the VA,

          7  DHS provides aggressive outreach to veterans living

          8  on the streets who would otherwise not seek

          9  assistance.  These outreach teams link homeless

         10  adults living in public places with services that

         11  will enable them to move into transition and

         12  permanent housing.  DHS also funds 11 drop- in

         13  centers that operate on a 24- hour, seven day a week

         14  basis.  These drop- in centers provide homeless

         15  single adults with services in a supportive

         16  atmosphere including access to medical and mental

         17  health services, referrals to transitional and long-

         18  term housing and assistance with entitlements.

         19                 Homeless adults enter shelter

         20  initially through an intake facility.  DHS operates

         21  one intake facility for men and three intake

         22  facilities for women.  During the initial

         23  assessment, each shelter client is evaluated for

         24  medical and mental health, substance abuse or

         25  employment related needs.  Based on the information
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          2  gathered during this assessment phase, shelter

          3  clients may be referred to a program shelter that

          4  focuses on specific barriers to permanent housing

          5  including employment, mental health or substance

          6  abuse.  The DHS single adult shelter system

          7  currently operates over 6,000 of these programmatic

          8  beds.

          9                 A client status as a veteran may not

         10  be his or her primary barrier to housing.  In these

         11  instances, the client may be placed in a program

         12  shelter similar to those I just described. However,

         13  if a client's status as a veteran is the primary

         14  reason that he is experiencing homelessness, he will

         15  be placed in one of DHS 464 program beds that serve

         16  veterans.  These specialized veteran's programs

         17  effectively provide the camaraderie of living in a

         18  structured substance- free environment with fellow

         19  veterans who are succeeding at bettering themselves.

         20    In addition, many of the staff members are

         21  veterans themselves who can understand and relate to

         22  the client's unique circumstances.

         23                 In all veteran's programs, the staff

         24  are experts in navigating the complex Veterans

         25  Affairs system and work with clients to assist them
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          2  in advocating for the VA benefits to which they may

          3  be entitled.  DHS' primary program shelter for

          4  veterans is, as you mentioned earlier, the Borden

          5  Avenue Veterans Residence operated by The Salvation

          6  Army in Long Island City.

          7                 Borden Avenue has 363 beds for

          8  veterans and another 47 beds for veterans with

          9  substance abuse disorders.  Borden Avenue provides

         10  comprehensive social services, case management,

         11  employment services, family counseling, financial

         12  management, housing referral and relocation

         13  assistance, recreational activities, alcoholics and

         14  narcotics anonymous groups, HIV testing, substance

         15  abuse assessment and counseling, medical services

         16  including eye examinations and a methadone group.

         17                 Through contracts with other not-

         18  for- profit providers, DHS operates five City- owned

         19  permanent housing residences in Manhattan, Brooklyn

         20  and the Bronx.  The not- for profit providers

         21  provide on- site case management services to

         22  effectively promote independent living and focus on

         23  the challenges relating to financial management,

         24  activities of daily living, mental illness,

         25  substance abuse and/or HIV and AIDS.
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          2                 These providers may also provide

          3  linkages or referrals to medical institutions or

          4  community- based organizations that offer

          5  employment, vocational and detoxification programs.

          6  Of the five City- owned SRO residences, two provide

          7  permanent housing exclusively for veterans.  New Era

          8  Veterans Inc., which I believe is represented in the

          9  audience today, operates Commonwealth Avenue

         10  Veterans Residents, a 150 unit facility in the

         11  Bronx.  In addition, the Black Veterans for Social

         12  Justice operates 175 unit facility on East 119th

         13  Street.  Both facilities serve formerly homeless

         14  veterans who also may suffer from histories of

         15  mental, medical and physical disabilities, HIV/AIDS,

         16  substance abuse or alcohol abuse or chronic

         17  unemployment.  Each resident has a private room and

         18  shares kitchens and bathrooms with other residents.

         19  In both facilities, individuals are referred from a

         20  mix of source including referrals from DHS funded

         21  programs.

         22                 Again, I'd like to thank the Council

         23  for the chance to be here today and for your

         24  bringing attention to this very important issue and

         25  I'm happy to answer any questions you might.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  I

          3  have a couple of questions here.

          4                 In the first page of your testimony,

          5  you outlined that according to publicly available

          6  statistics provided by the federal Department of

          7  Veterans (VA), nearly one- third of adult homeless

          8  men and one- quarter of homeless adults have served

          9  in the Armed Forces.  Are these statistics

         10  concurrent with New York City or is this nationally?

         11

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  These

         13  are national statistics.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  All right.

         15  That was my first question.  And with respect to

         16  your testimony, you also outlined that there were

         17  self- identified 717 individuals self- reported.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  That's

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  When you do

         21  an intake for emergency shelter or a transitional

         22  shelter, does your agency ask if they've served in

         23  the military, if they're veterans?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Yes we

         25  do.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Is that on a

          3  form or is it just verbal?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  It is

          5  recorded in a database and that's where that number

          6  comes from.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  So, you have

          8  717 self reported, outside of the Borden Avenue

          9  facility in Long Island City, is there a separate

         10  shelter for veterans?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  There

         12  isn't a separate shelter that's exclusively for

         13  veterans.  Borden is the only shelter that's

         14  exclusively for veterans.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  So,

         16  the other 300 and somewhat go where?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  They

         18  would go, as I said in my testimony, to other

         19  shelters that may address very specific needs that

         20  they have.  For instance, if a veteran has serious

         21  mental illness, then that veteran might be placed in

         22  one of the mental health shelters in our system and

         23  that shelter would have enhanced mental health

         24  services on sight for that individual but would also

         25  be working with the VA system to coordinate that
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          2  person's health care.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  What's the

          4  total budget for your agency?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  I don't

          6  have that available but I'm sure we can make that

          7  available to you after the hearing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay, well

          9  then my second question to the first question that

         10  wasn't answered that you'll follow- up with is a

         11  breakdown of how much your agency spends on

         12  veterans.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Again I

         14  don't have that available.  I --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  I'm

         17  sure --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  -- You could

         19  estimate it and then so we could make data.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  -- Make

         21  the, at least, the budget for the Borden Avenue

         22  shelter available to you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  That

         24  would be helpful.

         25                 Tell me a little bit about the

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  screening process; when you screen someone and they

          3  have self- described as a veteran. Tell me a little

          4  bit about that process.  What are the next things

          5  that happen; questions that are asked and so forth?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  We try

          7  to make sure the initial screening process happens

          8  in the shortest amount of time possible.  So, the

          9  main components of the initial screening in our

         10  system are making sure the person has a medical

         11  examination, a psychiatric evaluation if that's

         12  appropriate and that initial information is compiled

         13  to help us understand whether that person can be

         14  quickly placed outside of shelter or whether that

         15  person is going to need more specialized services.

         16  As I said, one of the questions in that initial

         17  screening is whether a person is a veteran.

         18                 There are also questions about what

         19  benefits the person either has in place or is

         20  entitled to; housing history and other questions

         21  that are designed to make an assessment as to does

         22  this person need a longer stay in the shelter system

         23  or is this just a short emergency period of

         24  homelessness where the person is going to go back to

         25  housing right away.
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          2                      If it turns out that there is no

          3  way to either rapidly prevent the person from coming

          4  into the shelter system or to rapidly place the

          5  person out, then that person may be placed, as I

          6  said, in one of our programmatic shelters.  If that

          7  person is a veteran and the individual feels that

          8  being in an environment with other veterans who have

          9  served their country where that camaraderie, as I

         10  said, can promote the person ending their

         11  homelessness and working together, then that person

         12  could be placed in Borden Avenue facility.

         13                 At that point the staff of the Borden

         14  Avenue facility would work much more in depth with

         15  the person on a whole host of issues.  Some of which

         16  might include possibly advocacy in terms of

         17  upgrading the person's discharge status from the

         18  military which might help the person be eligible for

         19  other entitlements. Working to make sure that that

         20  person already has entitlements which might include

         21  a service- related or non- service related VA

         22  pension, then the staff there would work to make

         23  sure that person is saving as much of that as

         24  possible to help move into permanent housing; would

         25  help identify permanent housing opportunities for
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          2  that person; would help to mediate with family if

          3  there are family issues that can be resolved to help

          4  the person move out of homelessness.  Would help to

          5  coordinate with the many services that are available

          6  through federal Department of Veterans Affairs.

          7  Some of those include health care provided at VA

          8  hospitals or in VA domiciliaries for people who need

          9  long- term treatment.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Also,

         12  compensated work therapy which may be important for

         13  people who want to move back into the workforce.  A

         14  lot of that --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  That was

         16  actually --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Happens

         18  at the Borden Avenue Shelter.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.  That

         20  was actually my next question which was two

         21  questions in one.  One is the issue of job

         22  placement, what type of programs you do offer?  And

         23  secondly, what type of assistance do you have or do

         24  you provide for veterans so that they can obtain

         25  permanent housing?  That's my two questions.
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          2

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  In

          4  terms of the job placement, a number of our

          5  facilities including Borden Avenue will assist

          6  veterans in obtaining permanent employment.  As I

          7  said, that can be first through an employment

          8  program such as Compensated Work Therapy.  Or for

          9  those individuals who feel ready to go back into the

         10  labor market that could include helping them

         11  identify their skills and navigating the job market

         12  and that could be anything from working on resumes,

         13  helping people have proper clothing and

         14  understanding-

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Not audible).

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Yes

         17  that does happen at Borden and we have a number of

         18  other shelters including one that's operated by

         19  Black Veterans for Social Justice.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  In Brooklyn.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  In

         22  Brooklyn.  And that's called Pamoja House.  Now that

         23  shelter is not exclusively for veterans but that

         24  shelter is one of our specialized programs that

         25  assists veterans and other homeless people.  It's
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          2  focused specifically on clients who are either

          3  employed or employable and who want to be able to

          4  increase their earning power so that they can end

          5  their homelessness.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  And

          7  regarding the assistance into transitioning into

          8  permanent housing.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  The

         10  Borden Shelter and all of our shelters do help all

         11  clients.  That's the goal of the shelter system is

         12  to end the homelessness of the veterans or other

         13  client as soon as possible.  There is not a single

         14  type of housing that people move into.  I mentioned

         15  that we do have supportive housing for people with

         16  special needs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:

         19  Supportive housing is generally for people who have

         20  disabilities whether that's an alcohol or drug

         21  problem or mental illness or HIV AIDS.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  So, outside

         23  of those categories, what type of assistance do you

         24  provide?  I think I did a tour of the Borden Shelter

         25  I think about a year ago, a little over a year ago
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          2  and, when speaking to some of them, some of them had

          3  been at this shelter for a very long period of time.

          4    Over 300 days or 360 days.  If there is not an

          5  issue of substance abuse or mental or physical

          6  challenges, I would assume that there's no reason

          7  why someone would be in a shelter for so long.

          8  Could you answer that or what type of programs you

          9  have that deal specifically with that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  What we

         11  would do is, first we would identify, as I said,

         12  whether the person is eligible for supportive

         13  housing and often someone does have an issue that

         14  led to their homelessness-

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  -- That

         17  makes them eligible for supportive housing.  In many

         18  cases that takes a while to determine and to

         19  understand whether the person is motivated.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Let's just

         21  say for argument's sake we've made that

         22  determination already.  They're able- bodied and

         23  psychologically fit.  They don't have dependency

         24  issues.  What do we do to transition them into some

         25  permanent housing?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  The key

          3  for someone who is able- bodied is to help them find

          4  employment and that's really going to be the focus.

          5  If there's not a disability and the person doesn't

          6  have the benefits that would allow them to afford

          7  housing, then the way they're going to afford

          8  housing generally is either by getting back into the

          9  workforce or living with family or friends.

         10                 Those would be the two main avenues

         11  that the staff might pursue.  So, the goal would be

         12  to help the person obtain a job that would allow

         13  them to afford and, as you said, that's a challenge

         14  in New York City.  What we find with veterans is,

         15  because of their experience in the military,

         16  veterans have skills and the key is really to help

         17  the individual understand those skills; to tap into

         18  the self-esteem that often has come with serving our

         19  country and to parle that into a job that would

         20  allow them to move into housing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I'm still

         22  trying to understand our response.  Let me ask you

         23  another question.  Let's say a couple or a family is

         24  living in a shelter.  I know DHS has emergency

         25  shelters and then they have transitional shelters.
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          2  As I understand there's an actual emphasis made on

          3  trying to find them some permanent housing whether

          4  through public housing or any of the other programs

          5  that are available.  Why don't we do this for the

          6  veterans who don't have physical or other

          7  challenges.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:

          9  Anything that's available to homeless individuals or

         10  families is, of course, available to homeless

         11  veterans.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Well, that's

         13  what I'm looking for.  What is available?  Tell me

         14  what that is?  Right now you told me that you'll

         15  help them find a job or maybe they recommend them to

         16  go live with their families.  I'm trying to find out

         17  what do we have in place at DHS specifically for

         18  veterans who are able- bodied and who are otherwise

         19  healthy.  What are we doing to help them find

         20  housing?  Is there a specific program?  Is there

         21  certain amount of units reserved for veterans at the

         22  Housing Authority?  Are there programs directed- I

         23  mean, what is it that we have in place is my

         24  question?  Or do we have -- I mean, we don't, we

         25  don't.  I'm just looking for an answer.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  You

          3  would have to ask the Housing Authority.  I don't

          4  believe that there are set asides for homeless

          5  veterans but I'm not sure about that.  You mentioned

          6  couples or families and I am in charge of the single

          7  adult part of our system so I'm not as knowledgeable

          8  about that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  There

         11  are subsidies that are available for homeless

         12  families and certainly veterans that are part of

         13  families are entitled to those subsidies.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  I

         15  want to recognize that we've been joined by two of

         16  our Brooklyn members who are here and part of the

         17  Committee, Council Member Louis Fiddler from the

         18  Borough of Brooklyn and Council Member Tish James

         19  also from the Borough of Brooklyn.  Thank you for

         20  joining us today and just to keep you up to speed we

         21  are presently hearing testimony from Mark Hurwitz

         22  who is the Deputy Commissioner at the New York City

         23  Department of Homeless Services.

         24                 I have a few other questions but I'm

         25  going to indulge my colleagues who have questions.
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          2  I'm going to start off with Council Member Tony

          3  Avella.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 Deputy Commissioner, first of all we

          7  appreciate your testimony here today.  But, I find

          8  it very interesting that your testimony consisted of

          9  four and a half pages yet only three paragraphs

         10  actually dealt with homeless services for veterans.

         11  I think that's very telling that you're talking

         12  about all that you do for our homeless people in

         13  general which is fine but you have almost nothing in

         14  this entire testimony actually to deal with homeless

         15  veterans.  I'm particularly disappointed that when

         16  the Chair asked you for an amount of the money that

         17  your agency spends on homeless veterans, you don't

         18  even have the figure for that.  I think you're

         19  unprepared for this testimony either unintentionally

         20  or deliberately.

         21                 Clearly, the City is not doing

         22  enough.  You're talking about the Borden Avenue

         23  shelter which we know is a great shelter.  Let me

         24  ask you a question, how filled to capacity is the

         25  Borden Avenue shelter?  I only know the answer to
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          2  that but I'd like to hear it from you.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  It's

          4  filled to capacity.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  So what

          6  happens when there's an overflow?  Where do these

          7  people go and I think that's part of the question

          8  that the Chair is getting at too.  Where do they go?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  They

         10  would go to other shelters in our system.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  What are we

         12  doing about that?  Has the Administration put more

         13  money in to create more shelters specifically for

         14  homeless veterans?  The think that it's interesting

         15  that on the first page of your testimony you say "to

         16  that end, DHS will remain dedicated to refashioning

         17  our current system and creating innovative

         18  strategies to better address the needs of veterans".

         19    We're five years into this Administration. You're

         20  get three years left.  When are you actually going

         21  to come up with a strategy then for homeless

         22  veterans?  I think your testimony is very telling

         23  and I'm very disappointed.  I could sit here and ask

         24  questions for the next hour, Mr. Chair.

         25                 I think we should have a follow- up
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          2  hearing with the Commissioner who should be much

          3  better prepared in terms of how many beds are

          4  available at the Borden Avenue shelter?  How many

          5  more people are on a waiting list? How long is that

          6  waiting list? How many people are actually served

          7  through permanent housing at the Borden Avenue

          8  shelter and some real statistics because I'm not

          9  hearing anything here today.

         10                 Thank you Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

         12  Your points are well taken.  Council Member Nelson?

         13

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Hi.  Thank

         15  you Mr. Chair. Welcome to all the veterans specially

         16  who are here today.

         17                 You have professional help, you were

         18  saying, to deal with psychological problems, post-

         19  traumatic stress what have you. Do you know how many

         20  psychologists approximately you have available to

         21  this services, CSWs or CACs or addiction counselors?

         22    A break down of that because I'm not doubting your

         23  commitment.  Just the way you express yourself you

         24  seem to have a deep commitment.  But just your

         25  ability, funding- wise, perhaps to address all of
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          2  the issues that you have.  That many thousands of

          3  veterans, it's like the school guidance counselor

          4  thing where there's one for 600 students and you're

          5  just spread too thin.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  We can

          7  provide you with the credentials of the staff at the

          8  Borden Avenue shelter and I apologize for not having

          9  that here today.  I would also like to point out, as

         10  I said earlier in my testimony, that it's not just

         11  the services at the shelter alone.  Particularly

         12  when it comes to health care, we're working very

         13  closely and working to improve the coordination with

         14  the federal Department of Veterans Affairs which

         15  does provide a comprehensive health package for

         16  veterans.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So we will

         18  have some statistics as far as the amount of the

         19  aforementioned professionals to get to -- and also

         20  draw up specialists, as well.  I think this is

         21  imperative.  The testimony, overall, I think

         22  indicated there's a lot going on, if and in fact

         23  really is being followed through, as Council Member

         24  Tony Avella was alluding to, and actually stating

         25  for that matter.  But it's so important.  We have
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          2  billions for defense, it's great but we need a lot

          3  more money.  The amount you get from the State or

          4  the feds, what percent just might that be?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  The

          6  federal money does not flow from us to the

          7  Department of Homeless Services.  The shelter

          8  services are funded in part by the State Office of

          9  Temporary Disability Assistance.  The formula, I

         10  believe, is a 50/50 formula --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  -- State.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  -- For

         13  all shelter.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I'm looking

         15  forward to hearing the statements from the veterans

         16  themselves and see what their challenges have been.

         17                 The feds they give to the state, to

         18  the City I guess, but do we know how much is

         19  earmarked for these services because I think that's

         20  an important point.  The City can take enough blame

         21  and deservedly so, perhaps, but if the feds are not

         22  giving enough money to aid our soldiers coming back

         23  from all the wars and now with the Iraqi war.  I was

         24  going to ask you that question too, by the way, if

         25  you have an approximation of how many Iraqi war
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          2  veterans are coming into the system.  They should be

          3  obviously following through with, not just paying

          4  the soldiers while they're fighting in Iraq but a

          5  follow through if they need assistance when they

          6  finish fighting for this country.

          7                 So, I'd like to see, if you can find

          8  out, how much the fed- I know- I heard what you

          9  said, but how much of it may be earmarked for

         10  veterans with certain problems as well.  That might

         11  be an interesting situation because we can try to go

         12  after the feds too.  Thank you.  Thank you Mr.

         13  Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         15  very much.  I have a couple more questions but I

         16  think that we'll probably going to have a follow- up

         17  hearing jointly with Council Member DeBlasio's

         18  General Welfare Committee.  The Commissioner has

         19  committed to come to a hearing.  As I understand,

         20  the Commissioner is also a veteran is he not?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  He is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I'm speaking

         23  to the Administration about that.  I said to him we

         24  were going to go ahead and have this hearing today

         25  because we had already planned it and we had to
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          2  change the date twice and so we were going to go

          3  forward but we will probably have a subsequent

          4  hearing to deal with this issue in January.

          5                 I have two more quick questions and

          6  then I have questions from my two other colleagues

          7  and embers of this Committee.

          8                 Recently there has been a large

          9  discussion and debate in the City Council right now

         10  about 421a which is an abatement program that's used

         11  to encourage development and construction.  One of

         12  the things I had thought about was perhaps

         13  legislatively introducing something that would

         14  require a percentage of set asides for returning

         15  veterans and veterans that have been hear.

         16  Something that I have discussed with several of the

         17  veterans advocates that I met earlier this week in

         18  my office.  What would your position be on something

         19  like that from your agency perspective?  Or even the

         20  issue of- let me give you a two- pronged question.

         21  Legislating something that will mandate a certain

         22  percentage of the dollars in the programs of the

         23  abatements be set aside for veterans.  But one step

         24  further is a mandate or requirement that the New

         25  York City Housing Authority set aside a certain
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          2  amount of dwellings, apartments for veterans.  How

          3  do you feel about that?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Today

          5  I'm not really prepared to speak about future

          6  legislation.  I'm sorry I just don't have enough

          7  details about what you're proposing to be able to

          8  comment on it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay, then

         10  perhaps we'll do some legislative work.  We'll send

         11  your agency a draft for some input.  I think it's

         12  important that an agency like yours, the Department

         13  for Homeless Services, which is really the agency in

         14  the City of New York that deals with issues of

         15  homelessness for all New Yorkers but in particular

         16  for veterans would have some input and to be active

         17  on the issue of homelessness and homeless veterans.

         18                 Let me move on to Council Member

         19  Fiddler. Before that, we're going to be hearing from

         20  Dan Lohaus shortly who is the director of this

         21  documentary "When I Came Home".  Every Committee

         22  Member has one right?  So, the homework assignment

         23  today is to view it and then give me a one- pager on

         24  it.  Double spaced, proof read, you're all going to

         25  get a grade.  So, I'll be home at midnight too,
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          2  that's usually when we all get home after a

          3  multitude of- I will do one, I will do one.

          4                 So let me allow- does DHS have this?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  No but

          6  I just wrote down the title so I'll --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We're going

          8  to provide it, we're going to provide it.  Yeah, go

          9  right ahead.  This is Dan Lohaus.  We have a

         10  celebrity with us today.  The director of this

         11  documentary.  DHS is -- the Veterans Committee

         12  assured that you got one.  You also could submit a

         13  one- pager on the film.  That was a joke by the way.

         14    Council Member Fiddler please.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.  I want to first apologize both to

         17  everyone here, specially the veterans for dancing in

         18  and out of this hearing.  The Education Committee,

         19  which I'm also a Member, is meeting simultaneously

         20  next door and as big as I am I can't be in both

         21  rooms at the same time. So I do apologize for that.

         22                 I want to take a moment though to

         23  follow- up on Council Member Nelson's inquiry

         24  because I think he was getting to the larger issue

         25  for me because I have always felt that in the area
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          2  of taking care of our veterans the primary

          3  responsibility vested with the federal government

          4  that made them veterans to begin with. So, it's nice

          5  to hear that the VA has counselors.  Does the VA

          6  have any shelter program?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  The VA-

          8  I'm not an expert on what the VA does so I won't be

          9  able to tell you in as much depth as you could hear

         10  from the federal government.  My understanding of

         11  what the VA has is they have a program that funds,

         12  it's called a Grant and Per diem Program that does

         13  provide funding to non- profit organizations for

         14  transitional housing.  The VA also has something

         15  that are called Domiciliary Program that are

         16  available to veterans.  I don't believe Veterans

         17  Affairs has something specifically that they call

         18  shelter.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Do you have

         20  any idea how many people are served by those

         21  programs?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  No but

         23  that information should be available from the

         24  federal government.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Do you have a
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          2  direct liaison with the VA on these programs when

          3  someone comes into Borden and you don't have room

          4  for them?  Do you have an ability or a mechanism by

          5  which you fluidly tap into the VA transitional

          6  housing programs?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Yes we

          8  do.  We work very closely; we're in touch several

          9  times a week at the administrative level with

         10  Veterans Affairs and also at the staff level there's

         11  close coordination between the programs that are run

         12  or funded by Veterans' Affairs and the Veterans

         13  programs in the City system.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  What I would

         15  suggest, Mr. Chairman, is that at the follow- up

         16  hearing we, in addition to getting some specific

         17  numbers from the VA as to what they provide, I think

         18  perhaps if we could compel the VA to join us, number

         19  1. Number 2, I think to have the online people who

         20  actually liaison with the VA on these programs

         21  should be here. I have found in the area of services

         22  and talking about shelters that it's very, very

         23  helpful to have the people who are hands- on come

         24  here and explain what actually happens in reality as

         25  opposed to what happens in the theory of DHS and the
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          2  VA.  So, I think that would be an important part of

          3  a follow- up hearing.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          5  Council Member. We will absolutely follow- up with

          6  that.  We're going to be following up that hopefully

          7  at the next hearing on the issue of homelessness and

          8  our veterans.  We'll get all the answers that were

          9  not answered today and obviously a few more that we

         10  will be asking.

         11                 So, Council Member Tish James.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         13  These are some startling statistics.  97% of all

         14  homeless military veterans are male.  Virtually all

         15  homeless military veterans are single.  Most

         16  homeless military victims are from poor

         17  disadvantaged backgrounds. 56% are African- American

         18  or Hispanic and homeless military veterans are more

         19  educated than homeless persons with no military

         20  background.  70% suffer from substance abuse

         21  programs.

         22                 As you may know, I represent a

         23  shelter in my district at Bedford and Atlantic which

         24  I've been speaking to the Commissioner with regards

         25  to transforming it and renovating it into a mix- use
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          2  facility.  I visit that shelter quite often and

          3  there's a number of veterans in that shelter.  It's

          4  not a drop- in center, it's an assessment center

          5  where, allegedly, individuals go for thirty days and

          6  then they're moved on to more permanent and

          7  transitional housing.  Some residents tell me that

          8  they've been there for longer than that period of

          9  time but a significant number of them are veterans.

         10                 My question is, as far as you know,

         11  is there someone there who basically is designated

         12  to care for the needs of veterans.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  As you

         14  said, that shelter is an assessment center and so

         15  that's a shelter that individuals- that men who are

         16  coming into shelter for the first time or at least

         17  in this recent episode of homelessness would have

         18  that initial assessment done.  So, as I said

         19  earlier, if they are a veteran and would like to and

         20  need to be at a program such as Borden Avenue, they

         21  would be moved as quickly as possible from the

         22  assessment program into that shelter or to a

         23  different shelter program that meets their

         24  individual needs, as I said, for substance abuse

         25  treatment or employment or mental health.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Do you know,

          3  for a fact, whether or not that is happening. Again,

          4  I visit quite often and there's a significant number

          5  of veterans.  What I find is that a significant

          6  number of them are suffering from post- traumatic

          7  stress disorder and they're not getting social

          8  services and their VA benefits are inadequate to

          9  address their homeless crisis- the housing crisis in

         10  the City of New York.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  It is

         12  happening as soon as we can do a thorough assessment

         13  and there is capacity in our shelter system

         14  although, as was mentioned earlier, the Borden

         15  Avenue shelter is full. People are moving out of

         16  Borden Avenue into housing every day and there are

         17  vacancies available on a regular basis at the Borden

         18  Avenue shelter and other shelters in our system.

         19  So, yes it is happening.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Do you get

         21  data on a monthly basis or on a periodic basis from

         22  some of these shelters in the City of New York with

         23  regards to what is happening therein?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Yes, we

         25  have comprehensive set of data that we use to
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          2  monitor the system and to make sure that, as you

          3  mentioned, it would be a concern to make sure that

          4  people aren't staying any longer than absolutely

          5  necessary at that entry point to our system.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Now that,

          7  thank God, the Democrats are in control of both

          8  Houses in Washington, are you working to lobby the

          9  federal government to increase VA benefits; increase

         10  the amount of homeless housing assistance that the

         11  City of New York receives for veterans and for

         12  others?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Our

         14  agency doesn't do direct lobbying, I believe.

         15  However, as I said, we do coordinate very closely

         16  with federal Veterans' Affairs on the surfaces here

         17  in New York City.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I recognize

         19  your agency doesn't do direct lobbying but I do know

         20  that the Administration does have an office where

         21  they lobby on federal issues and so the question is

         22  whether or not you've put on that agenda increasing

         23  the amount of funds that the City of New York gets

         24  for veterans that live within the jurisdiction of

         25  New York City?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  I don't

          3  know the answer to that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.  I work

          5  with Black Vets for Social Justice.  Are you aware

          6  that Black Vets is in the process of acquiring a

          7  building for the purpose of housing homeless vets?

          8  Council Member Al Vann and I on last year's budget

          9  gave significant amount of capital dollars to

         10  acquire that building.  As far as you know, in the

         11  City's budget agenda for this year, do they plan on

         12  matching that capital contribution that Council

         13  Member Vann and I made to acquire this building?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  I don't

         15  know the answer to that either.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Could you look

         17  into that please?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:

         19  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And if not,

         21  could you perhaps put it on your agenda so that in

         22  this year's budget, the Administration matches the

         23  amount of money that the City Council provided so

         24  that they can acquire a building to house homeless

         25  veterans.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          3  Council Member James.  I have one final question for

          4  the Administration.  Are you normally seeing more

          5  Iraq war veterans or Afghanistan veterans entering

          6  into the shelter program in New York?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  We

          8  thankfully have not seen a large numbers of Gulf War

          9  veterans.  Our estimate is 12- 15 currently in

         10  shelter.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  When you say

         12  Gulf War you're talking about the current engagement

         13  or the one from the 1990 --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  All the

         15  Gulf wars including the current engagement.  That

         16  statistic comes from Borden Avenue shelter.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  I

         18  would like to do a little follow- up on that for the

         19  next hearing.  We will have a next hearing.

         20  Actually, I think it works out even better because

         21  we're going to be hearing from many of the veterans

         22  and advocacy organizations today.  Then we'll

         23  compile a data of those questions and then part 2

         24  which will be our next hearing, I think will be even

         25  more insightful.
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          2                 So, I want to say thank you very

          3  much.  Please sent my best regards to the

          4  Commissioner.  Thank you.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HURWITZ:  Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I want to

          8  call up now at this point this morning, Dan Lohaus.

          9                 MR. LOHAUS:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  Also,

         11  just for the record, we also handed them a copy of

         12  the documentary so hopefully they will view it and

         13  respond in any way.

         14                 MR. LOHAUS:  It's 70 minutes long.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Tish, we all

         16  have a homework assignment tonight.  I've committed

         17  to seeing it this evening so by the next hearing,

         18  which we'll probably invite you back too, everyone

         19  will have some questions for you then after viewing

         20  it.  But previewing it, please state your name, your

         21  association --

         22                 MR. LOHAUS:  You got it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: -- And your

         24  testimony today.

         25                 MR. LOHAUS:  Yup.  My name is Dan
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          2  Lohaus, and I'm the director of a film called "When

          3  I Came Home" which was just premiered in the Tribeca

          4  Film Festival.  It's all about homeless Iraq war

          5  veterans in New York and I apologize for being

          6  emotional. I don't know who I should be angry at.

          7  I'm just angry and I really wish he would have

          8  stayed around because I'm getting a sense that he

          9  really needs to learn some things about what's going

         10  on and I was going to tell him in the last two years

         11  since this article came out, "Homeless Hero", New

         12  York Post.  We're starting to see homeless Iraq War

         13  vets in New York.  I don't know if he didn't see the

         14  article.  But in the last two years, I've taken --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Sergeant at

         16  Arms, can you get that article just so the Members

         17  can peruse it?   We'll give it right back to you.

         18                 MR. LOHAUS:  Oh, sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I just want

         20  to take a look at the article.

         21                 MR. LOHAUS:  What I was going to tell

         22  Mr. Hurwitz is --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  You can

         24  start out with Council Member James here.  Take a

         25  look at the article and pass it down to the other
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          2  Members.  Please continue.

          3                 MR. LOHAUS:  I was going to tell him

          4  that, in the last two years I don't know what's

          5  happened in City Hall.  I don't know what's happened

          6  within the walls of DHS.  I just know what's

          7  happened on the outside.  I've taken in three

          8  homeless Iraq war vets on to my couch in my

          9  apartment.  I was going to tell him to do the same

         10  because when you do that you really get a good

         11  education at what services are and are not available

         12  to veterans and I learned a heck of a lot.

         13                 I'd like to say this, two years ago

         14  when that article came out and I was looking for

         15  subjects for the film because I thought it was very

         16  important to show that what happened to Vietnam vets

         17  is basically happening again.  I went to Mr. Singh

         18  at Black Veterans for Social Justice and that time,

         19  two years ago, there were a handful in New York.  We

         20  could name them by name who the homeless Iraq war

         21  veterans, not Gulf War.  What is really disturbing

         22  to me is that now, two years later, I do have to say

         23  that two years ago we did come before City Council

         24  and we did -- Paul Rikoff (phonetic) from Iraq and

         25  Afghan Veterans of America said, you know it's
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          2  actually in the film; you'll see it tonight- said,

          3  you know we do have homeless Iraq war vets in New

          4  York now. I know it's flabbergasting to hear but it

          5  is happening.

          6                 Now, two years later, Mr. Singh at

          7  Black Veterans for Social Justice, I'm sure some of

          8  these other agencies, they're saying depending on

          9  troop movement, three or four homeless Iraq veterans

         10  a week walk in their door.  So we've gone from a

         11  handful to three or four a week.  Nationally, we've

         12  gone from estimates of 50 or 100 to- now the VA is

         13  admitting nationally that there are over 600

         14  homeless Iraq war veterans.  These are from Iraq or

         15  Afghanistan.  And you know the VA is admitting to

         16  600 you know there's probably a lot more.

         17                 I'm not even mentioning the folks

         18  that are coming in his door at risk of being

         19  homeless.  So, obviously more needs to be done.  I

         20  don't know who I should be angry at.  I'm just

         21  angry.

         22                 I'd like to say that, what I've found

         23  with the veterans that stayed at my apartment that I

         24  filmed, when they go to the VA they are referred to

         25  emergency assistance unit.  From what I can tell,
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          2  there are no places that veterans can walk in and

          3  say "I am broke, my wife just left me.  I have post-

          4  traumatic stress disorder.  I have nothing.  I don't

          5  know where to go tonight." Getting referred to the

          6  EAU, you know what happened to Harold in the movie.

          7  You'll see it.  All his medals were stolen.  All his

          8  clothes were stolen.  So, as he says, he just went

          9  from one combat situation to the next.

         10                 I know there are good people running

         11  these shelters but they don't have the resources to

         12  make them the kind of places they should be.  I mean

         13  Harold, just see in the movie, I don't want to blow

         14  the movie but, you know, he wanted to re- enlist

         15  because he felt like he was treated better in Iraq

         16  than he was in New York City.  That's the reality of

         17  it.  I suggest to, I don't know who, Mr. Hurwitz or

         18  whoever take an Iraq vet in.  Take one in.  Put them

         19  on your couch and you'll really see what they're

         20  going through.

         21                 The other thing that's- I need some

         22  water, I'm sorry.  The other thing Harold and the

         23  other veterans in the film were struggling with was

         24  trying to get Section 8 vouchers.  As Harold says in

         25  the movie "I joined the military so I could get out
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          2  of the projects, now I can't even get back into

          3  them."

          4                 You'll see in the movie that there is

          5  no Section 8 available.  You know, you probably know

          6  better than I do but specially for veterans.  We can

          7  take a look around the country at what works.

          8  There's an organization that is called US Vets.

          9  I've spent four years making this film so I've

         10  gotten to know what programs work and what don't.

         11  Here's a concept.  Take buildings on VA property

         12  that are defunct and turning them into transitional

         13  supportive housing for veterans.  That's what US

         14  Vets does.  I think we should take a look at that

         15  and I think we should take a look at making Section

         16  8 available to veterans.  I mean, even Harold said

         17  you know I'll still be going back in the projects.

         18  I'll still be hearing gunshots and that's not going

         19  to help my PTSD but at least I'll have a roof over

         20  my head.

         21                 So let's hope- now maybe we can take

         22  a look at St. Albans in Queens- I'm new to all this

         23  but I think that's a noble concept.  How about

         24  providing jobs for veterans renovating those defunct

         25  buildings on VA property to turn it into supportive
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          2  affordable housing for the vets.

          3                 It just makes me upset that this has

          4  to become a huge problem before we start studying it

          5  and looking at it.  I mean, let's take a look at

          6  Vietnam vets.  There's 150,000 homeless Vietnam vets

          7  still out there on the street.  There's our study.

          8  They're going through the same thing.  They're

          9  coming back to a country that is basically telling

         10  them that what they did was meaningless; a country

         11  that is denying them benefits.  It's just the same

         12  thing all over again.

         13                 So, I'll just end by saying let's

         14  hope if we come back two years from  now we're

         15  celebrating cutting ribbons on transitional housing.

         16    We're celebrating the fact that New York City

         17  stepped- up and showed the rest of the country how

         18  to do it. I appreciate the time here today and I

         19  appreciate you all watching the film.  And I'll be

         20  happy to answer any questions.

         21

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         23  Dan for your testimony.  Just for the record.  In

         24  the last two budget cycles there was as initiative

         25  that was proposed that was cut at the last point in
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          2  the budgetary process to at the very least for the

          3  City to provide resource centers in the five

          4  boroughs or at least three of the five boroughs.  It

          5  was unfortunate that it did not happen. Hopeful,

          6  once again, that finally this year the City Council

          7  will actually put its money where its mouth is an

          8  actually provide service to our veterans as opposed

          9  to just lips service and presentations at

         10  ceremonies.

         11                 So, I concur that there needs to be

         12  more done.  It's unfortunate that our City currently

         13  does very little.  Next to nothing in my opinion.

         14  In particular when you compare it to a 54 billion

         15  dollar budget.  I think the last estimate we looked

         16  at there's- we perhaps spent about $80,000 on the

         17  Mayor's Office of Veterans Affairs which I think is

         18  not only disheartening but it's absolutely- it's 180

         19  but half of that money comes from the state. The

         20  other half is city so our actual investment is

         21  minuscule.  When you look at the type of programs

         22  that this City funds, many if not all of them are

         23  very much deserving but what is more deserving than

         24  providing services to our vets?

         25                 I myself am a veteran also of the
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          2  United States Marine Core and I was activated during

          3  the first Persian Gulf War when I was a New York

          4  City Police Officer.  This is an issue that I take

          5  very much to heart.  It's discouraging at times even

          6  though I'm part of government seeing how our

          7  bureaucracy works not in favor of those who have

          8  served.

          9                 So I'm glad you did your documentary

         10  and that it will bring some light and perhaps

         11  sometimes folks need to see this over the dinner

         12  table before it really has an impact and hopefully

         13  that will trickle down into our City government.

         14                 I also want to say that clearly the

         15  federal government doesn't do enough and they really

         16  have the primary responsibility.  I just,

         17  unfortunately- not unfortunately but I'm a city

         18  legislator so that's where I have to start.

         19                 We're going to take questions from

         20  our colleagues. We'll start with Council Member

         21  Nelson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.  A

         23  little curious, just to throw this out here.  Mr.

         24  Noel, when he came back -- when he is back, did he

         25  complain, I don't mean complain but as far as when
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          2  he would not want to stay at one of these

          3  aforementioned shelters --

          4                 MR. LOHAUS:  Did he complain, was it

          5   --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  -- At the

          7  conditions there?

          8                 MR. LOHAUS:  Yeah, absolutely.  I

          9  mean that's the reason he was living out of his car.

         10  He said "they sent me to the EAU.  They sent me to

         11  the EAU and while he was sitting there in that

         12  place, he said I didn't want my kids to see that.  I

         13  didn't fight for that.  While I was sitting there my

         14  kids went off this way and I ran after my kids and I

         15  came back and all my stuff was stolen" you know all

         16  his medals, all his clothes.  He was the one that

         17  let me know that it's violent; that you're watching

         18  over your back; that it's safer in Iraq then it is

         19  in some of the shelters. That's not saying that

         20  there aren't great people who care about homeless

         21  vets that are trying to run these places.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  That's why I

         23  asked the question.  I think it's important for that

         24  to be on the record as well.  What kind of security

         25  is there?  How many people are working there or are
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          2  they equipped to work there?

          3                 World War II, I remember when I was a

          4  little kid I would see these Quonset huts

          5  (phonetic), I'm sure some of our veterans remember

          6  that along the Belt Parkway.  I don't know what the

          7  conditions were in there, but we don't even have

          8  Quonset huts, as far as I can see.  I would imagine

          9  conditions were better but I don't know.  I wish

         10  there would be a World War II veteran here who had

         11  experience with that where we would see these guys

         12  at the rate of probably one an hour across the

         13  country which is a shame.  But it does seem

         14  despicable that we don't have better facilities and

         15  that's why I wanted to get this on the record, as

         16  far as the conditions at the homeless shelters.

         17  There's really got to be a better way.  This

         18  muckraker movie you came up with and with Frank

         19  there from the Post and others, we do need more

         20  stories on this and I think from the soft

         21  underbellies of the City's conscience where we get

         22  things accomplished.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Any other

         24  questions from the Committee Members?

         25                 Okay.  Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. LOHAUS:  If I might just add.

          3  Any way that you all would like to use the movie to

          4  raise attention, please feel free.  Just let me

          5  know.  I'd love it for the Mayor to see it as well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We're going

          7  to be doing some follow-up with you.  We have some

          8   --

          9                 MR. LOHAUS:  Great.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We have a

         11  few ideas.

         12                 MR. LOHAUS:  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Our general

         14  counsel is going to be -- we want to make sure we

         15  have a good phone number on you so before you leave

         16  he'll see you.

         17                 Let me call up Malik Hutchinson,

         18  Samaritan Village. I'm going to call up Joe Below

         19  also.  Thomas Mullifield from the New Era Veterans

         20  and Dr. Raphael K. Works from the Veterans

         21  Association of America.  We're going to start out

         22  with each of you. Please try to limit your opening

         23  presentation to two minutes each. Okay?  And then if

         24  we have any other questions we would do follow up

         25  but please be brief, be concise and make your point.
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          2    Start out with identifying yourselves and your

          3  organization and please begin your testimony.  We'll

          4  start with you sir.

          5                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  My name is Malik

          6  Hutchinson.  I'm with Samaritan Village Veterans

          7  Program.  I'm an outreach case worker for the

          8  program.

          9                 In my daily travels throughout the

         10  City to perform my functions, I deal a lot with, say

         11  for example the agencies that are here, Black Vets.

         12  I go to Borden Avenue quite often and what I'm

         13  seeing a lot of times when I'm- say for example at

         14  Borden Avenue is that we're actually dealing with

         15  the clients who might be suffering with PTSD as well

         16  as substance abuse; having substance abuse issues.

         17  I'm pretty much, it's like an assembly line.  I'm

         18  really taking people out of Borden Avenue and

         19  placing them in Samaritan Village to receive the

         20  help they need in Samaritan Village.

         21                 Yes, there is a sense of complacency

         22  with staying in the shelter system, you know.  We

         23  have to continue to challenge the men to come out of

         24  that and receive the help they need.

         25                 My interest though, that's been a big
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          2  problem for me, is referring women who are veterans

          3  to the proper places  for their health.  They have

          4  different circumstances maybe than the male veteran.

          5    I'm a Navy vet myself.  We have different problems

          6  than a woman.  She might have children.  She might

          7  have certain issues that can't be dealt with maybe

          8  in say -- I can't refer her to Borden Avenue.  I

          9  can't refer her to certain agencies to deal with her

         10  homelessness so I'm having a struggle.  I have

         11  actually two women on my case right now that I'm

         12  trying to make sure they get the appropriate

         13  housing.  They suffer from being in crowds.  They

         14  can't be in crowds anymore.  So, I send them to

         15  maybe EAU.  They don't even want to go because of

         16  the magnitude of people that might be there.  So, I

         17  don't have a place to send them that would be

         18  smaller for them to maybe to deal.  If it's five or

         19  ten people in the room maybe they can deal better

         20  than, you know, what they're dealing with now.  So,

         21  they'd rather come to my office and me refer them to

         22  another place and I'm just having a big problem with

         23  the 3%.  We don't want to forget about that 3% --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Absolutely.

         25                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  -- That hasn't been
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          2  mentioned.  So, that's been an issue with me.  I do

          3  have numbers.  I deal with St. Aubens domiciliary

          4  regularly.  That's a place that, you know, veterans

          5  come to -- 85 men capacity there.  I deal a lot with

          6  Montrose (phonetic) and Northport also which has

          7  domiciliaries. They usually send people our way also

          8  for help with their circumstances.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We'll

         10  follow-up with some questions with you.  We'll allow

         11  the next gentleman to make his presentation.

         12                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

         14  Everyone remember, we have a two-minute limit on

         15  their opening statement.

         16                 MR. MULLIFIELD:  Yes, good morning.

         17  My name is Tom Mullifield representing New Era

         18  Veterans ran by Mr. John Laguna (phonetic) and Dr.

         19  Ruth Schaffer (phonetic).

         20                 We have a facility with 150 men and

         21  women, veterans all.  93% of our guys are honorably

         22  discharged and 60% are combat vets.  The average

         23  pension that my guys get is about $650 a month. Now,

         24  first we have an issue with where we're going to

         25  place guys in my facility that are ready where they
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          2  don't have Section 8 vouchers.  There's no way for

          3  them to get it.  There's a waiting list a year or

          4  two long.  By that time they've fallen into the

          5  swamp of things that occurs around certain

          6  facilities and certain disjoined areas.  That's the

          7  first issue.

          8                 Secondly, we're looking at

          9  transitional. Transitional to what?  I mean, a lot

         10  of guys from transitional do go on to a better life

         11  but you have a lot that fall through the cracks and

         12  what happens to them?  They come back into the

         13  system again.  There's no place to actually put them

         14  unless they're designated New York- New York

         15  qualifications.  Are you familiar with that?  Where

         16  they're deemed to have mental health issue and then

         17  they're applicable to get the Section 8 voucher but

         18  there we go back to square one.  It takes God knows

         19  how long for these guys to get it.  The guys and

         20  girls.  We have like 15 women in our facility.  We

         21  have a security staff who make sure nothing goes on.

         22  It's quite secure and it's quite nice.  We keep it

         23  up to date and this is through Department of

         24  Homeless Services.

         25                 They do not provide us with
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          2  scattered- site housing. We get that through the

          3  Department of Mental Health.  Again, back to Section

          4  8.  Back to New York- New York.  We, our unit,

          5  ourselves, pays the 70% out of our own pocket and if

          6  30% comes out of- the rental I'm talking about- 30%

          7  comes out of the veterans' pocket. We need- Bill

          8  298, I'm very familiar with that; I've been running

          9  with that God knows and we'll get that done sooner

         10  or later.  We'll get it done.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

         12                 MR. MULLIFIELD:  And I'm so proud of

         13  you for running with that like you have --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 MR. MULLIFIELD: -- Mr. Monserrate.

         17  We need more buildings.  My idea -- I don't want to

         18  make this a long thing.  My idea was ask Mayor

         19  Bloomberg, you're building all these fantastic

         20  buildings and you're calling for low-income.

         21  Low-income for whom? A guy makes $650 a month, where

         22  are we going to put these guys? You're putting them

         23  back into the projects.  I mean, that's a wonderful

         24  thing.  At least he has a place like the gentleman

         25  said. But you're going back to square one and, like
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          2  you said, 70% of these guys drug, alcohol addiction.

          3    We have at our facility NA and AA programs but

          4  what happens when we get this guy back out in the

          5  street.  Is he going to follow- up on his therapy

          6  and so on and so forth?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

          8                 MR. MULLIFIELD:  My plea to you is to

          9  get more Section 8 for our guys and girls so we can

         10  put them back out in society while we negotiate with

         11  the Mayor to do something with these projects he's

         12  building for low- income, again for whom I don't

         13  know, but it certainly it ain't for me or this

         14  gentleman or this guy here.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. MULLIFIELD:  Thank you Sir.

         17                 DR. WORKS:  I'd like to thank you Mr.

         18  Chairman Monserrate for allowing me to speak today

         19  at your hearing.  I was here at your last hearing,

         20  actually, across the hall in the next room.  My name

         21  is Dr. Raphael Works, Chairman, CEO and founder of

         22  the Veterans Association of America.

         23                 I was quite disappointed today what I

         24  heard from the Department of Homeless Services.

         25  It's completely appalling just to hear the
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          2  statistics and figures or the lack thereof of them

          3  of which they had claimed to have presented and it

          4  seemed like they definitely were not prepared.

          5                 We have to do a little bit more in

          6  actually seeking that those things are actually

          7  done.  Proving the three top areas of which veterans

          8  have had problems with for the longest which is

          9  employment, housing and medical facilities and

         10  actually taking care of a number of their issues.  I

         11  don't think that that is actually happening.

         12                 I have spoken to and actually

         13  advocated and continue to advocate within my

         14  organization of over 9,100 members of which are

         15  currently enrolled and of which I speak to on a

         16  daily basis. It seems like it's pretty, pretty

         17  desperate because a number of the veterans that I

         18  have spoken to have gone through the rigors of going

         19  through a lot of the bureaucratic red tape trying to

         20  locate, you know, some sort of a job.  None of these

         21  veterans actually would not be on drugs or alcohol

         22  if they had a suitable level of employment and a

         23  place to live.  I think that's number one.  If they

         24  could actually get those things in place, then the

         25  others would actually fall through as well.  But,
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          2  we're not seeing that. We're not seeing it at all.

          3                 It seems as though that the

          4  allocation of which we were speaking to at the last

          5  hearing about the veteran resource centers, I think

          6  that that's something a bill, Mr. Chairman, of which

          7  you should actually resubmit again to actually put

          8  forth to your constituents to see that that actually

          9  takes place.  We definitely need something like that

         10  immediately.  It hasn't happened and we're

         11  continuing to actually see a number of veterans that

         12  are continuing, as mentioned by my colleagues, fall

         13  (sic) directly through the cracks.

         14                 We need to actually step up the

         15  process and it's not just you.  It's not just you.

         16  We're talking about on the state and the federal

         17  level as you've mentioned earlier.  What's of the

         18  principal members that actually should be taking

         19  foot- hold in this particular process.  I'd like to

         20  thank you all.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         22  doctor. Obviously you've raised the issue of the

         23  bill that I introduced. We attempted two tracks at

         24  forcing the issue of resource centers throughout our

         25  city.  One was through a budgetary item and the
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          2  other one was mandating it legislatively.  Hopefully

          3  that will not have to be the case though I would

          4  imagine that that would be quite a contentious issue

          5  of navigating that bill through this legislative

          6  process.  It appears that there seems to be a little

          7  bit of a resistance to this issue and hopefully that

          8  will change shortly.  We will continue to navigate

          9  these waters and I'm confident the majority of

         10  Members if not all the Members of this Committee are

         11  on the same page that this initiative and this very

         12  basic support network that the City could provide

         13  should happen sooner than later.  Mr. Bello.

         14                 MR. BELLO:  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         15  I'm really going to book-end some of the things that

         16  were said.  In terms of dealing with the issue of

         17  allocating or increasing resource, it really would

         18  be instrumental for the Department of Homeless

         19  Services to do a proper and accurate number of how

         20  many homeless veterans there are here in the City.

         21                 As you know, DHS is required by law

         22  to determine how many veterans have entered the

         23  City's homeless shelters.  I found it striking that

         24  in his testimony he said there were 717 self

         25  identified veterans yet when you look at DHS'
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          2  website, they continue to still say that there are

          3  only 417 homeless veterans and that's only men in

          4  the City system.  We know that number has not

          5  changed in years.  We know that number is incorrect.

          6    I testified about it last year and I also, to

          7  book-end what Malik was saying, that DHS reports in

          8  their statistics that there is not one homeless

          9  female who is a veteran.  That is so false.  I don't

         10  understand why those numbers reflect that there are

         11  no female veterans.

         12                 So DHS has the opportunity to start

         13  this process. They have their annual HOPE coming up

         14  again this month.  We have been advocating that they

         15  should at least, at the minimum, when they do the

         16  hope ask, "Are you a veteran," to the individuals

         17  and ask as they show- up in intake centers.

         18                 As I stated last year, I'd like to

         19  see DHS create a separate place to intake homeless

         20  vets.  It has the potential of creating a one- stop

         21  shopping center and it can make sure that veterans

         22  are aware and can take advantage of whatever

         23  benefits and their medical needs.

         24                 Last year the director of MOVA who

         25  was here last year testified to this Committee that
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          2  the Mayor and HUD had announced plans to restore up

          3  to 360 one to three family homes in New York City

          4  and sell them as affordable housing to approximately

          5  650 families which is the first veterans preference

          6  in any City housing lottery.  However, I noted that

          7  the lottery would only apply for those veterans who

          8  had been on active military service from September

          9  11th onward.  In essence, cutting out the majority

         10  of the City's homeless veterans and creating two

         11  classes of veterans:  Those before 911 and those

         12  after which is something similar to the blue and

         13  yellow veteran vending license situation.

         14                 The bottom line is that that does not

         15  address the veterans homeless situation and can only

         16  be looked at as a stop gap.  The current vending

         17  situation does not work for veteran vendors, so what

         18  would make anything (sic) think that this would work

         19  for the homelessness situation?

         20                 Lastly, last year Ms. Joynes

         21  testified that MOVA coordinates with the New York

         22  City Housing Preservation and Development, New York

         23  City Department of Homeless Services, the Human

         24  Resources Administration, New York City area

         25  military commands, Family Readiness Coordinators and
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          2  local military commands, the Department of the VA,

          3  the State Division of Veterans Affairs and community

          4  based organizations in assisting any veterans facing

          5  homelessness.

          6                 That was her quote and while I

          7  understand that she's only a messenger for the

          8  Bloomberg Administration, her absence only

          9  undermines what many here and in the veterans

         10  community believe is Mayor Bloomberg's double

         11  standard of making speeches, having breakfasts and

         12  stating that he supports the troops but not putting

         13  any real resources into veterans.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you to

         16  Joe and to all members of the panel.  I have one

         17  question and then my colleague has a statement.  Let

         18  me just- we're going to have two more panels after

         19  this one.  We are pressed for time.  Our democratic

         20  caucus is schedule for 12:00 has just been pushed

         21  back to 12:30.  So, to my colleagues who are

         22  concerned about that, the democratic caucus which is

         23  basically the democratic Members of the Council have

         24  a meeting to talk about their legislative agenda.

         25                 So, I have one question specifically
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          2  regarding the Borden Avenue facility for any of you

          3  that might have experienced or might have visited.

          4  Now, I visited about a year ago and I forwarded some

          5  critiques some of which that in my comparisons I

          6  found in some ways the facilities at Rikers were

          7  better than the facility at Borden Avenue.  I've

          8  visited both facilities in an official capacity.

          9  The computers were nicer at Rikers then they were at

         10  the Borden Avenue shelters and I think that's

         11  disgraceful.

         12                 Also, the fact that the Borden Avenue

         13  shelter, which is not that big really, has an open

         14  barracks type of set- up providing for very, very

         15  little individual privacy.  I understand why it

         16  happens in boot camp but I don't know why it would

         17  happen to a vet after he's come back home.  If you

         18  use the argument that it's supposed to be temporary

         19  for an emergency but when I spoke to guys who had

         20  been there for 360 days, that doesn't sound too

         21  temporary. So, that's a concern.  Have any of you

         22  visited the Borden Avenue shelter?  Anyone want to

         23  make a comment about their own personal observations

         24  very briefly for the record?

         25                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  Yes, good afternoon
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          2  again.  I visit it weekly and I at least assess one

          3  to two veterans a week to try to get them into the

          4   --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  What

          6  organization is this again?

          7                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  Samaritan Village

          8  Veterans Program.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Samaritan

         10  Village, right, right.

         11                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  They actually have

         12  to like -- it goes down a system where they actually

         13  have to sanction the client because they might of

         14  presented some type of problem in the past to the

         15  staff which are working very hard in trying to place

         16  these, you know, men or veterans into proper

         17  supportive care.  Like, for example, substance abuse

         18  which I specialize in mental health, they take- it's

         19  very hard.  Sometimes I have to go down interview a

         20  client and then follow- up and come back and get

         21  them a week later because the client will go out the

         22  next morning and not make it to the appointment.

         23  But these are just the extra things that we're doing

         24  on our end to bring them in but they're fighting a

         25  hard battle over there.  They're fighting a very
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          2  hard battle.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.

          4                 MR. BELLO:  And if I can just add in

          5  real quickly. I sit on the community board of the

          6  Borden Avenue Veterans Resident Advisory, plus I'm

          7  the president to the Friends of Borden Avenue

          8  Veterans.  One of the things that we've been doing

          9  to try to help them is I also work for La Guardia

         10  Community College and we have our Workforce I

         11  Program and we've been trying to get a lot of the

         12  gentlemen to come up from Borden Avenue, come to La

         13  Guardia and go through the Workforce I Program.  So

         14  that's one of the ways we've been trying to help

         15  them out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay, we

         17  have one question from Council Member James.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Recently I

         19  recall the City of New York was doing a census of

         20  it's homeless population on the street.  And I'm

         21  trying to remember if there was any report of

         22  findings from that census and how many of the

         23  individuals living on the street are actually

         24  veterans.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Do we know
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          2  if it was on the questionnaire?

          3                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  There wasn't.  Never

          4  on a questionnaire.

          5                 MR. BELLO:  Never on a questionnaire.

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:  Never on a

          7  questionnaire.

          8                 MR. BELLO:  In fact, the VA held it's

          9  challenge which is where they bring all the groups

         10  together and Mr. Hurwitz was actually the keynote

         11  speaker and we asked him that very question and he

         12  said he had numbers but I guarantee you he never

         13  produced any of those numbers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Mr. Chair I

         15  ask that we follow- up on that and I see you are

         16  already working on it.  So, if we could share that

         17  information that would be very interesting.

         18                 And let me ask you this other

         19  question and this is an aside.  There's a building

         20  which is technically not in my district.  Flatbush

         21  Avenue is the dividing line in my district. Right

         22  over the bridge on Flatbush Avenue.  What is that?

         23  What does it do and why do I not see anyone going in

         24  there?  And why is there no outreach and why do I

         25  know nothing about it, which you probably can't
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          2  answer.

          3                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  It's Chapel Street.

          4  It's Chapel Street facility and it's --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  What does that

          6  mean?

          7                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  That's the name of

          8  the street, Chapel Street --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.

         10                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  -- But it's the

         11  Department of Veterans Affairs has certain areas in

         12  the building.  It's a federal- owned building and

         13  they split it up in various agencies. As a matter of

         14  fact, oh man, he passed away, Mike Handy actually

         15  started out of there and they're actually still

         16  there but it's so many compartments that place can

         17  be used better also.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         19                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  You know, to provide

         20  assistance for veterans.  But, yeah, it's hidden

         21  away --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  It's very

         23  hidden and there's no --

         24                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  -- Very hidden away

         25   --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  -- And there's

          3  hardly anyone that goes in there.

          4                 MR. HUTCHINSON:  -- Ran down --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  There's a

          6  school across the street and I happen to visit the

          7  school quite often and I'm just disturbed that

          8  there's just no traffic and there's no one going in

          9  there for services.  So Mr. Chair, if we could at

         10  some point in time have a discussion about that

         11  Chapel Street office.  What it does; what's its

         12  function; what's its service; why there's no

         13  outreach and I have a number of other questions with

         14  regard to Chapel Street.  So I gave you two- back at

         15  you- two homework assignments.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  The only

         17  thing I'll add to that is that Committee Members,

         18  all of which have at least in this community have

         19  the opportunity to help shape the agenda and to

         20  formulate future hearings and legislation, whatever

         21  you have I suggest you please contact Harold.

         22  Harold Gates is the General Counsel and we're

         23  already talking about the next hearing which I think

         24  is going to be extremely interesting and very

         25  provocative.
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          2                 So, I'm going to thank you gentlemen

          3  for your testimony.  Before you leave I have an

          4  announcement but let me just call the next panel.

          5  The next panel will consist of Pat Toro, president

          6  of Vietnam Veterans of America.  Ralph Di Toro,

          7  Disabled Veteran Vendors.  Dan Rossi, veteran and

          8  Ricky Singh from the Black Veterans for Social

          9  Justice.  Please come up and take your seats.

         10                 I just want to make sure that no one

         11  leaves here- there's actually going to be a meeting

         12  this afternoon of veterans organizations.  The

         13  meeting is only open to organizations. Veterans

         14  organizations; their representatives.  That meeting

         15  will be today, sponsored by my office at- thank God

         16  we have Blackberries, right?  At 1:00 on the 16th

         17  floor at 250 Broadway which is across the street.

         18  So, only if you're representing an organization can

         19  you join this.  It has to be a veterans exclusive

         20  organization and you're invited.  So, if you have

         21  any questions you can see me or Harold before the

         22  close of this hearing.  Again, that's only for

         23  veteran organizations.

         24

         25                 Okay, we're going to begin with Pat.
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          2  Please identify yourself, your title, your

          3  organization and your testimony.  Please remember

          4  that we have a two minute limit for your opening

          5  statement then well have Q&A.  We have one more

          6  panel after this and then we have to close quickly

          7  because of the recently scheduled democratic caucus

          8  meeting of the Council.  So, please sir.

          9                 MR. TORO:  Can you hear me?  My name

         10  is Pat Toro. I'm president of the Vietnam Veterans

         11  of America, Queens Chapter 32 in Queens.  I want to

         12  thank you for having me here.  I want to thank you

         13  for having your panel.

         14                 Real quick, I know I don't have that

         15  much time and after listening to everything that

         16  came out of DHS, I could probably sit here til 6:00

         17  with a lot of question.  So, I'm not even going to

         18  go there.  One of the things the panels should

         19  change, Mr. Chairperson, is that the veterans be

         20  allowed to speak first with no time limit and then

         21  we should put a time limit on what organizations or

         22  departments like DNH (sic) speak just so we can cut

         23  down the rhetoric and what they say which is

         24  basically nothing.

         25                 What I want to do is I want to just
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          2  touch real quick on -- there's a lot of things I can

          3  talk about, but I'm just going to stick -- I

          4  attended a meeting a couple of weeks ago with

          5  Congressman Leeks down in St. Albans pertaining to

          6  St. Albans.  For lack of a better way to put it,

          7  there was a lot of vultures from the community there

          8  waiting to tap in to whatever property is available

          9  from St. Albans once the restructuring there is

         10  complete which I found very disheartening because it

         11  is a federal facility.  It is run by the VA.  It

         12  belongs to the veterans and I believe that the

         13  veterans should have a say in what happens to that

         14  facility.

         15                 Now, a lot of those community members

         16  who were there did not attend any of the cares

         17  meetings while a lot of our veterans were there to

         18  support to keep that place open.  Mayor Bloomberg,

         19  to something that Joe Bello said earlier and we've

         20  had discussions on it, Mayor Bloomberg has done

         21  absolutely nothing for veterans in his time in

         22  office.

         23                 It's an embarrassment when a couple

         24  of years ago I sat down for breakfast with him alone

         25  with some of the veterans organizations and had him
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          2  tell me right to my face that Vietnam veterans were

          3  screwed.  Well you know what?  As far as I'm

          4  concerned, we were screwed then and we're still

          5  being screwed by him now.  Especially with the

          6  homeless situation.

          7                 Now, at that meeting with Congressman

          8  Leeks, Clorice Joynes, who I see is not here was

          9  there and she made mention of the fact that the

         10  Mayor is supposedly coming out with some kind of

         11  veterans homeless initiative within the month.  What

         12  I told her was that I was I would be very surprised

         13  because he hasn't come out with any veterans

         14  initiatives at all.

         15                 My problem with the Mayor is that,

         16  you know what? It's nice to stand there and say you

         17  support the veterans from whatever era they are.

         18  But it takes more than marching in front of a parade

         19  waving a little flag. And that's one of my problems

         20  but I am on the taskforce with Congressman Leeks.

         21  We will rectify because when we went to Cares we

         22  asked that what they do at St. Albans once they

         23  reconstruct it is that they put a hospice facility

         24  there for veterans.  That they put a women's

         25  domiciliary there for veterans because I'm tired of
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          2  hearing about the fact that we have no homeless

          3  women vets when I know for a fact that's not true.

          4  And to expand the domiciliary that's there.

          5                 Once we do all that and once we have

          6  all that in place, then if there's any property left

          7  over then the community if they need it for whatever

          8  that's fine.  But, you know what?  To sit there in a

          9  meeting and listen to how they want to expand Roy

         10  Wilkins Park into St. Albans and as a side thing but

         11  the veterans can use it, my reply to that is, you

         12  know what?  That's veterans space; that's veterans

         13  property. Why don't we fix it up for the veterans.

         14  Then if the community wants to use it maybe we'll

         15  let them in.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right.  You

         17  know, you raise a very interesting point.  In fact,

         18  I was just talking to the General Counsel.  We're

         19  going to be setting up an official tour of that

         20  facility by the City Council and this Committee.

         21  Touring that.  Perhaps one of the things that should

         22  be discussed is the development of housing for

         23  veterans if there's extra space.

         24                 MR. TORO:  It's my understanding that

         25  the VA will be putting out a footprint of how, once
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          2  the reconstruction starts or ends, what's going to

          3  be there.  That's supposedly coming out at the end

          4  of January.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  When are

          6  they planning to build there?  Do you know?

          7

          8                 MR. TORO:  All I know is -- one of

          9  the things from the chaos came out is that they're

         10  going to supposedly bring St. Albans into the 21st

         11  century.  How big they're going to do it, we have no

         12  way of knowing whether they took what we said about

         13  a hospice and a women's dom (sic) and all that stuff

         14  there, we don't know. But I did state to Congressman

         15  Leeks unequivocally that in all likelihood myself,

         16  and when I say myself I'm saying veterans, will

         17  probably butt heads with him on St. Albans.  Because

         18  I'm not going to stand by and let the community and

         19  I have nothing against the community whatsoever but

         20  I'm not going to standby and let the community come

         21  in and take what's rightfully ours.  Not when we

         22  fought so long to get it to where it is now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Hopefully

         24  that won't be the case and we'll do some work on it.

         25    Please sir, begin and present your testimony
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          2  today.

          3                 MR. SINGH:  Thank you.  Good morning,

          4  Mr. Chair and Committee Members and notable guests.

          5  Thank you for this opportunity.  I'm going to stay

          6   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Can you say

          8  your name for the record please.

          9                 MR. SINGH:  Sure, my name is Ricky

         10  Singh and I'm the Vice President of Veterans

         11  Services of Black Veterans for Social Justice.

         12                 I'm going to stay away from something

         13  that we've heard a lot of and that's the statistics

         14  documenting homelessness among veterans.  I think

         15  quite clearly that we understand that that it is an

         16  existing problem and I would like to offer some

         17  suggestions in terms of solutions.  But,

         18  nevertheless, I feel compelled to answer some

         19  questions that were asked earlier.

         20                 The VA issues a report called the

         21  Challenge Report and in that report the VA says that

         22  approximately 500,000 veterans experience

         23  homelessness annually.  However, in that very report

         24  the VA says they're only able to provide services to

         25  100,000 homeless veterans annually -- 20%.  Leaving

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  80% of all homeless veterans without services from

          3  the lead agency responsible for servicing them.

          4                 A question was raised about beds in

          5  the grant per diem program.  The VA funds 8,000 beds

          6  nationwide for the estimate 500,000 veterans who

          7  would experience homelessness.  In New York state we

          8  have 14% of the nation's homeless veterans

          9  population- 44,000.  We have 2% of the beds in the

         10  grant per diem program.  318 beds in New York state

         11  for an estimated 44,000 veterans experiencing

         12  homelessness.  It is a disgrace.  So I wanted to

         13  offer some ideas that we have come up with based on

         14  our expertise of servicing veterans for the last 28

         15  years.

         16                 There are some leading causes for

         17  homelessness among veterans that we recognize.  #1)

         18  Mental health illnesses specially PTSD which is

         19  known to interfere with people's ability to initiate

         20  and maintain relationships, hold jobs, their careers

         21  and have a positive outlook on life.  The complete

         22  lack of affordable housing in New York City.  The

         23  last of veterans preference in subsidized housing,

         24  high unemployment rate and the lack of meaningful

         25  transitional assistance programs for discharged
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          2  veterans.

          3

          4                 We would like to make the following

          5  suggestions to the Committee.  That New York City

          6  mandate a Section 8 voucher which is veterans

          7  specific and pays market rent.  That we require all

          8  new housing developments using city funds to set

          9  aside 10% of all units for homeless, low income or

         10  disabled veterans.  That we built transitional

         11  housing with multiple supportive capabilities

         12  specifically for veterans.  That we do not include

         13  veterans compensation and pension when we are

         14  screening for low income housing so that we screen

         15  them out of eligibility and that we adopt a housing

         16  first model in any program that uses New York City

         17  funds. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

         19                 MR. DI TORO:  Thank you very much.

         20  I'm glad for this opportunity to speak but I would

         21  like to- my name is Mr. Ralph di Toro.  I am with

         22  the Disabled Veterans Vending Action Committee.  At

         23  this point, I would like to relinquish my time to

         24  Dan Rossi if I could.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Absolutely.
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          2                 MR. ROSSI:  Good afternoon.  My name

          3  is Dan Rossi. We've been here quite a few times

          4  Councilman.  Everything I've just about heard today

          5  is coming from very sincere people who want to do

          6  good for people who kind of fell in between the

          7  cracks.  I come from a point of view is (sic) to

          8  stop it before it happens and to me it's always been

          9  if you can find work for some of these men, it

         10  helps.

         11                 I've been to many of these hearings

         12  and most of the time the Council is pointing their

         13  finger at the men on this side of the table and

         14  asking what have you done and what are the numbers

         15  and how much money and it's always the same thing.

         16  Now, I'm going to turn the tables and I'm going to

         17  point my finger at the Council. I hate to put you on

         18  the spot but I have to put you on the spot.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  That's were

         20  I happen to be, on the spot so.

         21                 MR. ROSSI:  Good.  So, if I was to

         22  tell you that right now there are introductions in

         23  the City Council that could help some of these men

         24  find jobs, it wouldn't cost the City a penny.  Would

         25  you go along with them?  And I'm going to explain
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          2  them to you.  Would you Councilwoman James?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Sure.  Let's

          4  hear it.

          5                 MR. ROSSI:  Okay.  The first one is

          6  introduced by Councilman Avella.  What he did was --

          7  and Councilman Nelson is co-sponsored it already.

          8  They're going to lift the illegal cap on food

          9  vending permits for disabled vets.  This is a cap

         10  that was initiated by the Health Department

         11  illegally.  As you know, disabled vets are under

         12  state jurisdiction.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         14                 MR. ROSSI:  The state guarantees them

         15  a permit.  The City says the hell with you.  You're

         16  not getting it and they can't get it.  So, what it

         17  would do is- it may not help many men but I imagine

         18  that in the real numbers, the real world it would

         19  probably find employment to maybe 50 to 100 men.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         21                 MR. ROSSI:  No more than that.  The

         22  second bill is even much more important for the

         23  disabled vets.  That would reinstate three companies

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Who
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          2  introduced the bill?

          3                 MR. ROSSI:  Excuse me?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Avella also

          5  both --

          6                 MR. ROSSI:  -- Avella yes and

          7  Councilman Nelson. This would reinstate three

          8  veteran- owned companies that lost their business

          9  supporting veterans.  I happen to be one of them.

         10  It's almost a guarantee.  I can guarantee you that

         11  if that bill was to be passed, veterans would go

         12  back to work because my history has always been when

         13  I started my business I employed only Vietnam vets

         14  because we couldn't find work.  If a veterans went

         15  beyond one and become a mechanic- some of my men

         16  went on to construction trades, they found some good

         17  employment after I got them started.  If men wanted

         18  to be vendors, I gave them free equipment to go and

         19  vend.

         20                 Now under the Giuliani

         21  Administration, he took that away from me.  Give it

         22  back to me and I'll do exactly what I did the first

         23  time and I guarantee you that a lot of the men that

         24  these men are helping they'll never see.  At least

         25  that'll give them an opportunity to have a choice.
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          2  Now those two introductions are at bat.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.  Let

          4  me ask you --

          5                 MR. ROSSI:  Now it's on your hands.

          6  You know, as far as whether you'd go with them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Do you by

          8  chance know the introduction numbers?

          9                 MR. ROSSI:  Introduction 446 for the

         10  reinstatement of multiple and again --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  And the

         12  other one?

         13                 MR. ROSSI:  And the other one is 447,

         14  the lifting of the cap.  Just to go over it, when

         15  Mayor Giuliani --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Let me just

         17  say for the record, I don't know if I'm a co-sponsor

         18  on one of those bills. I'm going to look into that

         19  today.  It sounds pretty much like I would be a

         20  co-sponsor.

         21                 MR. ROSSI:  Good.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I want to

         23  read the bill first.

         24                 MR. ROSSI:  I appreciate it and I

         25  appreciate it for Councilwoman James --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I will

          3  forward to the Members of the Veterans Committee for

          4  their support.

          5                 MR. ROSSI:  And since there are a lot

          6  of veterans --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  The second

          8  point I want to make is that I believe that both

          9  those bills are under the Consumer Affairs

         10  Committee.

         11                 MR. ROSSI:  Yes.  Well, we're looking

         12  for supporters of the bills.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         14  Maybe there will be a way that we could have a joint

         15  hearing.  Maybe we can make it a joint venture

         16  between the two committees.  I think that might be

         17  helpful to the overall cause so.  We're going to

         18  look into those today and please follow-up with Mr.

         19  Howard Gates who's the Counsel for the Committee.

         20

         21                 MR. ROSSI:  Okay.  We appreciate it

         22  because there's men who want to go to work.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Yup.

         24                 MR. ROSSI:  And --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  It sounds
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          2  like, from what you're saying it sounds like pretty

          3  rational.  We're going to read it through and I'm

          4  going to ask you to do a specific follow- up with

          5  Counsel Gates of the Committee.

          6                 MR. ROSSI:  Okay.  I appreciate it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  And we will

          8  try to get you some support.

          9                 MR. ROSSI:  So will a few veterans.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  All right.

         12  Thank you very much.

         13                 Council Member James.  Go right ahead

         14  and --

         15                 MR. ROSSI:  Can I stress one point?

         16  That --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Make your

         18  point.

         19                 MR. ROSSI:  -- During Giuliani's

         20  crazy time, the law that divested us of our permits

         21  involved 142 companies but only three or four of

         22  those companies today would have multiple permits.

         23  All the rest were given back their permits.  Only

         24  the people who signed on board to defend the

         25  veterans were singled out- and I can bring everyone
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          2  here -- were singled out and denied permits.  And

          3  I'm not talking about legitimate permits.  The City

          4  gave other companies illegal permits.  I mean, no

          5  one wants to touch this because there was so much

          6  nonsense going on but I think we've gotten to that

          7  point where it's going to hit the fan and let's do

          8  it.  I could put a lot of people to work in a real

          9  short time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  All right.

         11  Council Member James followed by Council Member

         12  Nelson and then I must call the final panel because

         13  we're really running short on time.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes, my staff

         15  is checking to see if I'm on 446 and 447.  The

         16  question is: As far as you know in the City of New

         17  York, is there any preference program for veterans

         18  as far as any of their housing programs?

         19                 MR. SINGH:  For subsidized housing-

         20  absolutely no.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  There's no

         22  preference at all.

         23                 MR. SINGH:  None whatsoever.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Council
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          2  Member, make your statement.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  No, I

          4  just- it's not even a wrap- up yet but we didn't

          5  join the New York City army, the New York State

          6  army, the Montana army.  We joined the United States

          7  Army and that's why we really have to pressure all

          8  of our Congress members.  Now, in New York, I don't

          9  think we have to worry that much but we have to get

         10  our brothers and sisters in other parts of the

         11  country to pressure them.  There's just been a

         12  turnover in Congress and to pressure all of the

         13  newly elected democrats too. Because, obviously, we

         14  are hurting for funding in many ways. Section 8 for

         15  veterans would be a good place to start.  So, I

         16  think in all of our newsletters to Vietnam Veterans

         17  of America newsletters and every other one we should

         18  be pressing, pressing for that.  Thank you.

         19                 Thank you Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

         21  We're going to call --

         22                 MR. ROSSI:  Councilman, I just want

         23  to make a correction.  It's true.  There are a lot

         24  of us joined the army but I and the Chairperson, I

         25  speak for the chapter, we joined the Marine Core.
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          2  Just to make a correction on that

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.  I

          4  think he meant the United States Military.  He used

          5  army as a generic term and I understand --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Shame on me.

          7  I'm Air Force.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  -- He was

          9  one of the other branches.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you for

         11  your time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We're going

         13  to call up Robert Rivera from Samaritan Village Vets

         14  Program, Immanuel Eusey and Daniel Rodriguez.

         15                 Please gentlemen, in the future,

         16  before anyone of you leave, we want to make sure we

         17  have your phone numbers.  Some of you put on a

         18  partial address.  Sometimes the address could be a

         19  Brooklyn address or Bronx address.  So, please when

         20  you fill out the card, fill it out completely.

         21  Before you leave make sure we have your phone

         22  numbers cause there's going to be a lot of follow up

         23  meetings with the veterans organizations talking

         24  about legislation and budgeting initiatives and all

         25  these things.  We want to be able to contact you.
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          2  So, please help us with that.

          3                 Please gentlemen, begin your

          4  testimony.

          5                 MR. RIVERA:  Good afternoon.  My name

          6  is Robert Rivera. The military, Marine Corps.  There

          7  was one thing that I don't think we paid enough

          8  attention to and that's the conditions of some of

          9  these places we got.  Borden Avenue, I'm not going

         10  to lie to you, we nicknamed that Gladiator School.

         11  Gladiator Schools because that's pretty much how

         12  it's being run.  They don't have a lot of staff

         13  members there to deal with the amount of people they

         14  got there and for their alcohol and substance abuse

         15  problem they have one section about 20 beds out of

         16  the whole facility dealing with that and they're

         17  surrounded by another 300 who do use; who do have

         18  mental health issues and so on and so forth.

         19                 I'm in a program that houses 48

         20  veterans.  Only 48 veterans.  A new facility also

         21  opened in Richmond Hills that house another 48 to 50

         22  veterans.  Total that's a little less than 100

         23  veterans which we have thousands of veterans coming

         24  back from Iraq. I volunteer in a Bronx VA.  My next

         25  step is to serve in the CWT program and in those
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          2  programs there's only but so much and so many that

          3  they can deal with.  CWT only has a per capa that

          4  they could only accept about 100 people per quarter.

          5    I don't know how that really goes.  I'm not a

          6  politician.  But it doesn't serve enough and

          7  specially with the veterans coming back from

          8  Afghanistan and Iraq, the numbers are going to be

          9  even larger than what we have now.  I think it's

         10  only by right that they get treated and have a place

         11  to go.  98 beds is not enough for the thousands that

         12  are coming.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I'm going to

         14  hear from the others but, did you live in the Borden

         15  Shelter?  Have you lived there or you just

         16  experienced?

         17                 MR. RIVERA:  I've done outreach at

         18  Samaritan Village.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Why do they

         20  call it Gladiator?

         21                 MR. RIVERA:  Because of the

         22  conditions.  Because of the fights that break out;

         23  the violence that breaks out.  They have about four

         24  security guards that walk through the whole

         25  perimeter which is not enough to --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

          3                 MR. RIVERA:  To keep people feeling

          4  safe about their environment.   And when you live in

          5  an environment that's chaotic you tend to be chaotic

          6  yourself.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.  And

          8  the open barracks type setting that they have, do

          9  you believe that --

         10                 MR. RIVERA:  I believe it don't work.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  -- Is

         12  detrimental to safety?

         13                 MR. RIVERA:  Yes.  I really don't

         14  believe it works. Like I said, that's just like they

         15  don't have enough staff and security to deal with

         16  the amount of people that they have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Or space.

         18                 MR. RIVERA:  Or space.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         20  Because there's obviously an issue of space.

         21                 MR. RIVERA:  And that's a desperate

         22  need.

         23

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.  Now,

         25  it's been a while since I was there.  Do they have a
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          2  second and third floor there?  How many floors?

          3                 MR. RIVERA: No, it's one floor.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  It's one

          5  floor.

          6                 MR. RIVERA:  One floor.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay Sir.

          8  We'll take testimony from you and the others.

          9                 MR. EUSEY:  Good afternoon Mr.

         10  Chairman and Members of the Committee:  My name is

         11  Emmanuel Eusey and I'm also a client of Samaritan

         12  Village.  I'm a veteran and in my journey through

         13  this homelessness, I stayed in one street shelter-

         14  it was like a holding area where you sat in a chair,

         15  held onto your bag for the night and in the morning

         16  you were on the streets and come back at night.

         17  While I was there I was introduced to Chapel Street.

         18    At Chapel Street they had a program over there

         19  where you would go for counseling in the day and

         20  assessment and back to Bundt Street.  At Bundt

         21  Street, I couldn't stay there.  I chose to sleep on

         22  a bench. At Bundt Street there were drinking alcohol

         23  outside, smoking marijuana and selling crack.

         24                 While I was at Chapel Street I heard

         25  about Samaritan Village.  Chapel Street helped me to
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          2  obtain my disability from the army.  I get $881 a

          3  month non- service connect disability.  I entered a

          4  VA hospital and I was in a rehab center there for

          5  about 28 days and they referred me to Samaritan

          6  Village.  It's an excellent program.  It's 48 of us

          7  in there and there I'm assisted with my PTSD, mental

          8  health, my drug addiction and I am very pleased with

          9  the care I'm getting there.

         10                 I want to bring attention to

         11  something that, as a veteran, I think I deserve to

         12  this Committee.  I get $881 per month from the VA as

         13  a pension, non- service connect.  The people that

         14  are in the system, the City pays for them.  My $881

         15  is provided for the part of my payment.  As a

         16  veteran I believe that I should be able to maintain

         17  some sort of money out of there so that at the end

         18  of my stay I could accumulate certain funds and I

         19  think this need to be looked into.  As a veteran I'm

         20  entitled to certain privilege that I pay for part of

         21  my treatment with my pension and retain a part for

         22  myself as some sort of a saving that at the end of

         23  my tenure, my treatment, I have something for me to

         24  continue my life with.  I think as veterans we're

         25  entitled to this.  And Samaritan is excellent.  We
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          2  have a director there called Carla Davidson

          3  (phonetic).  This lady I would place with Mother

          4  Theresa when she leave this earth.  I mean, superb.

          5  The treatment is outstanding. If it wasn't for

          6  Samaritan, I would not be sitting here talking to

          7  guys today.  Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you,

          9  sir, for your testimony.

         10                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Good afternoon, Mr.

         11  Chairman.  Members of the Board. My name is Dan

         12  Rodriguez.  I'm also a client at Samaritan Village.

         13                 While sitting here this morning and

         14  listening to every one speak, I felt very impersonal

         15  because I was referred to as a number, as a

         16  statistic.  This person sitting before you today is

         17  a human being.  I have a face.  I have a name.  I

         18  have feelings and I have needs.

         19                 Borden Avenue Shelter has been talked

         20  about this morning a great deal.  I was in that

         21  shelter and Robert calling it a Gladiator School,

         22  it's minimizing it a little bit.  To live with and

         23  among 300- something men, 300- something

         24  personalities, 300 different characters, 300

         25  different mood changes and to live in an open dorm
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          2  like that it becomes very stressful.  Specially when

          3  you're stagnated with the fact that you just became

          4  homeless. You're in a place.  You're trying to get

          5  off of drugs.  Drugs are around you.  You have no

          6  self- esteem.  You feel down.  You compromise so

          7  much in your life and you must don't know what to do

          8  and the next best thing is to do a bag of dope.

          9  Smoke a little bit of crack or have a drink.  As a

         10  result of that, you're stagnated. You stay.  Maybe

         11  this is why you see 300 people stay in there 360

         12  days out of the year.

         13                 I also lived upstate.  I am a

         14  homeless vet.  I also entered the federal facilities

         15  such as Montrose VA.  Montrose VA provides a

         16  domiciliary program.  It's pretty good for about

         17  three months.  That's about it.  Three to four

         18  months.  It provides you with intensive therapy

         19  which is four hours a day of work.  You get

         20  compensated by it.  It also provides you with a

         21  program called CWT which allows you to work and you

         22  get paid every two weeks.  The program lasts about

         23  four months.  After that you're on your own. So,

         24  they really don't provide any shelter; any housing.

         25  So, it's temporary help.  It's like putting a band-
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          2  aid on a wound that's kind of infected and it's not

          3  really healing.

          4                 Samaritan Village has afforded me the

          5  opportunity to see things differently.  You can go

          6  into the system and look it as a place to lay your

          7  head and wait for the summer to come around. But I

          8  was afforded the opportunity to find out who I am.

          9  Where I came from and why I did what I did and to

         10  acquire certain skills to utilize if I do get some

         11  housing.  At least I have the skills to maintain

         12  that housing.  They also provide schooling.  Not too

         13  many places in New York City- in fact, I don't know

         14  of a place in New York City that looks out for vets.

         15  As a young man, I was called upon this country to

         16  serve this country and I did it willingly and I did

         17  it with honor.  Today I sit here before you

         18  gentlemen and ladies to call upon you to help our

         19  vets and help us get off the streets.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Hold on.

         21  Hold on, sir.  I have a question specifically for

         22  him.  Thank you, gentlemen. No, this gentleman here.

         23  Actually, have you stayed at the Borden's Avenue

         24  shelter?  Where you there?  No.  Then my question is

         25  directed to him.
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          2                 You concur with the other gentleman's

          3  testimony that the facility and the way that it is

          4  set up is lacking?  Do you agree with that?  That

          5  it's not a facility that's providing good shelter?

          6                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Let me put it this

          7  way.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  You could be

          9  frank, I mean, I just want --

         10                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes, I'm going to put

         11  it this way. If you invited me to your home and you

         12  saw that I was in need and you allow me to lounge

         13  around, drink a beer, watch tv and not take care of

         14  anything in your home, what would you do?  You would

         15  ask me to leave. All right, I feel that a person --

         16  well, I'm going to put it on me.  I feel that if I'm

         17  afforded the opportunity to lay my head down and

         18  afforded the opportunity to get my life back, I'm

         19  going to use it.  Now, I can't do that if the

         20  facility doesn't provide certain needs.  Having a

         21  bed and having a little locker- it's not even a bed,

         22  it's a bunk.  Having a little locker doesn't really

         23  give me any sort of incentive to find where I went

         24  wrong in life. It doesn't give me any incentive to

         25  go up to a counselor that if I'm lucky is in a good
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          2  mood and is willing to sit down and really work with

          3  me.  It's kind of discouraging sometimes.  When you

          4  start going through a door and start revolving, just

          5  going back and forth.  It's all repetitive.  And,

          6  you know what?  It gets frustrating and it gets

          7  really frustrating to the point where you just want

          8  to escape and the best way to do it is by having a

          9  drink sometimes because you see no end.  You don't

         10  see the light at the end of the tunnel.

         11                 I was fortunate.  I got lucky.  I met

         12  someone there that was willing to help and was

         13  really sincere about it.  I had some clean time on

         14  my belt and I saw life with a little but more

         15  clarity.  So, I was able to grasp onto that and I

         16  was able to get out of there.

         17                 I'm not saying that Borden Avenue

         18  shelter is a bad place.  It's getting vets off the

         19  streets.  It's getting cold out there.  I would hate

         20  to sleep on the subway or on the street corner and

         21  start begging for food.  At least I get three meals

         22  and a cot and a place to shower. If I'm lucky I'll

         23  get a good counselor; I'll get a good psychiatrist

         24  that can help me with PTSD.  I can get

         25  housing coordinated and maybe they can place me
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          2  somewhere.  If I'm lucky.  Okay.

          3                 Obviously, you yourself have been

          4  there.  You seen people that have been staying there

          5  360 days.  This is a shelter. This is a temporary

          6  fix.  It's not a permanent fix.  It's no excuse why

          7  any individual should be there 360 days.

          8                 I'm in a therapeutic community called

          9  Samaritan Village and this program is six to nine

         10  months and what they do at this program is they

         11  assess you when you first come in.  They take care

         12  of all your medical needs.  They see how much

         13  education you have. They see what your problems are.

         14    If you have PTSD; if you don't.  If you are a

         15  troubled individual, everything is- there's

         16  structure to fix your life.

         17                 They make you go to school.  If you

         18  don't want to go to school then you leave.  You pack

         19  and you leave.  You go to school; you acquire a

         20  skill.  You learn tools to utilize to live in life.

         21  You obtain housing and you're talked to budget your

         22  money. How to spend it correctly.  How to maintain a

         23  level of character to have integrity and not

         24  compromising and to stick by your gun and stick by

         25  your conviction.  That's the kind of program we need
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          2  in this place.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          4  very much for your testimony.  With that I'm going

          5  to be closing the hearing.  As I said, we're having

          6  a summit with some of the veterans organizations

          7  only across the street at 1:00 which is in about 40

          8  minutes so everyone has time to pick up some chow,

          9  as we would say in the military.  16th floor, 250

         10  Broadway, 1:00 p.m.  Veterans organizations only.

         11                 Thank you very much and we're going

         12  to be closing today's hearing.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:23 p.m.)
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